Nick Toop

From: somerset - highwaysdevelopmentcontrol
<highwaysdevelopmentcontrol@planning.somerset.gov.uk>

Sent: 04 June 2019 10:54

To: Planning

Cc: Andrew Gunn

Subject: Response To Application Number 18/04057/0OUT at Land East Of Mount Hindrance
FarmMount Hindrance LaneChardSomerset

Attachments: Response_18-04057-0OUT.pdf

Following further discussion and liaison with the developer this Authority has had the opportunity to reconsider the
transport implications of this development.

Please find attached an amended recommendation which takes into account the outcomes of the recent
discussions.

Regards

Adam Garland



Somerset County Council

County Hall
Taunton
Somerset
TA1 4DY

For Roads & Transport Services 0300 123 2224

South Somerset Disctrict Please ask for:
Council (West) Adam Garland
Brympton Way

Yeovil

Somerset

BA20 2HT

my reference:

SSDCw/2019/004973

FAO: Andrew Gunn

Dear Sir/Madam,

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990

WWW.SOMERSET.GOV.UK

Telephone:

01823 359540

email:
highwaysdevelopmentcontrol
@somerset.gov.uk

your reference:

18/04057/QUT
4 June 2019

Outline application for mixed development comprising residential
development of up to 295 dwellings, provision of a floodlit full size football
pitch, unlit full size training pitch and community sports pitch with associated
multi use clubhouse, spectator facilities and vehicular parking area; hub for
local neighbourhood facilities and other community uses, public open space,
landscaping, drainage and other facilities; associated vehicular and
pedestrian accesses, land regrading, associated infrastructure and

engineering works.

Land East Of Mount Hindrance Farm, Mount Hindrance Lane, Chard, Somerset

Application Reference: 18/04057/OUT

Further to this Authority's previous recommendation further discussions have been
completed and the Highway Authority has the following additional comments to

amend those previously submitted.

Travel Plan - Not Acceptable - Revisions Required

The actions required to get the Framework Travel Plan up to standard have already

been provided.

The Travel Plan should be secured via an agreement under s106 of the Town and

Country Planning Act 1990



Highway Improvement works
The following package of mitigation works has been offered by the applicant;

A new access road via Thorndun Park Road

An Emergency Vehicle Access onto Crimchard

Extension of the 30mph limit on Crimchard 50m north (the TRO amendments to
be included in s278/106 agreement)

Visibility splays measuring 2.4x43m for both accesses

Parking in accordance with standards

Footway and Cycling Infrastructure links

A Travel Plan (secured via a s106 agreement)

A formal pedestrian crossing on Furnham Road adjacent to Dellshore Close
Improvement of public footpath to the west of the Bowling Club.

Two new bus stops on Crimchard at the site frontage.

Provision of bus shelters at two nearest bus stops on Thorndun Park Drive - the
developer has accepted that the Highway Authority do not take contributions.
Reservation of land to provide future footway along Crimchard to connect with
the site immediately to the south of the Mount Hindrance, which is currently being
considered for allocation for housing in the current Local Plan review, should it be
developed.

Signalisation of Furnham Road/Victoria Avenue Junction linked to Coker Way
existing signals

Conclusion

The developer has agreed to the above package of mitigation measures which can
be secured via appropriate legal agreements. In this regard the Highway Authority is
content that the impact of this development on the local highway network will not
create a highway safety or efficiency issue.

Any outstanding matters with the Travel Plan, internal site layout and technical
details of the mitigation package can be agreed during the next stage.

In the event of permission being granted, the Highway Authority would recommend
that the following conditions are imposed:-

Before any work is commenced a programme showing the phasing of the
development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority and the development of the estate shall not proceed other than in
accordance with the approved programme.

The applicant shall ensure that all vehicles leaving the site are in such condition
as not to emit dust or deposit mud, slurry or other debris on the highway. In
particular (but without prejudice to the foregoing), efficient means shall be
installed, maintained and employed for cleaning the wheels of all lorries leaving
the site, details of which shall have been agreed in advance in writing by the
Local Planning Authority and fully implemented prior to the construction phases
beginning, and thereafter maintained until the construction phases end.

The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until the developer
has applied for an amendment to the speed limit Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)
on Crimchard. The amended TRO shall then be advertised and, if successful,



implemented at the developer’s expense to the satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority.

NOTE: The outcome of the consultation to amend the TRO is not guaranteed and as
such cannot be predicted. In the event that the application to amend the TRO fails
further works may be needed to ensure the emergency access onto Crimchard can
be provided to a suitable standard in the interests of highway safety.

Provision shall be made within the site for the disposal of surface water so as to
prevent its discharge onto the highway, details of which shall have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such
provision shall be installed before occupation and thereafter maintained at all
times.

The proposed estate roads, footways, footpaths, tactile paving, cycleways, bus
stops/bus lay-bys, verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, drains, retaining
walls, service routes, surface water outfall, vehicle overhang margins,
embankments, visibility splays, accesses, carriageway gradients, drive gradients,
car, motorcycle and cycle parking, and street furniture shall be constructed and
laid out in accordance with details to be approved by the Local Planning Authority
in writing before their construction begins. For this purpose, plans and sections,
indicating as appropriate, the design, layout, levels, gradients, materials and
method of construction shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority.

The proposed roads, including footpaths and turning spaces where applicable,
shall be constructed in such a manner as to ensure that each dwelling before it is
occupied shall be served by a properly consolidated and surfaced footpath and
carriageway to at least base course level between the dwelling and existing
highway.

In the interests of sustainable development no part of any particular phase of
development hereby permitted shall be occupied until a network of cycleway and
footpath connections has been constructed within that particular phase in
accordance with a scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall include, but not be limited to,
Footway and Cycling Infrastructure links,
A formal pedestrian crossing on Furnham Road adjacent to Dellshore Close,
Improvement of the public footpath to the west of the Bowling Club.
Reservation of land to provide future footway along Crimchard to connect with
the site immediately to the south of the Mount Hindrance

No part of any particular phase of this development shall be occupied until
parking spaces and properly consolidated and surfaced turning spaces for
vehicles have been provided in accordance with current standards in a position
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The said spaces and access thereto
shall be properly consolidated and surfaced, and shall thereafter be kept clear of
obstruction at all times and not used other than for the parking of vehicles or for
the purpose of access.

The new development shall not be commenced until the Travel Plan has been
fully agreed and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No part of
the new development shall be occupied prior to implementation of those parts



identified in the Approved Travel Plan as capable of being implemented prior to
occupation. Those parts of the Approved Travel Plan that are identified therein
as capable of implementation after occupation shall be implemented in
accordance with the timetable contained therein and shall continue to be
implemented as long as any part of the development is occupied.

o Before any particular phase of the new development is brought into use, the new
pedestrian and cycle arrangements to include cycling and walking accesses
through the boundary of the site where deemed necessary shall be laid out,
constructed and drained in accordance with a detailed scheme to be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

+ Prior to occupation of the 50th dwelling the developer shall provide two new bus
stops on Crimchard at the site frontage, and bus shelters at two nearest bus
stops on Thorndun Park Drive.

s Prior to occupation of the 150th dwelling the developer will undertake works to
install traffic signals at the junction of Furnham Road and Victoria Avenue linked
to the existing traffic signals at Coker Way.

NOTE: All works within the highway will be designed in agreement with this Authority

and contained within an appropriate Agreement under s278 Highways Act 1980, or

s106 Town and Country Planning Act

Yours faithfully,

Adan Garband

Principal Planning Liaison Officer

Traffic & Transport Development Group
Economic and Community Infrastructure Commissioning
Somerset County Council



